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Massachusetts Animal Coalition, Inc.
    Working together to decrease the number of homeless, 
                             neglected, displaced and abused animals in Massachusetts


Animal Friendly License Plate Grant Program 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
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2009

Massachusetts Animal Coalition

Animal Friendly License Plate Program

Grant Guidelines and Criteria

INTRODUCTION

The Animal Friendly License Plate Program of the Massachusetts Animal Coalition is funded by the proceeds from the sale of “I’m Animal Friendly” license plates. The Program is intended to help stop pet overpopulation in Massachusetts and seeks to accomplish this goal by providing funds for spay/neuter services to non-profit organizations and municipalities within Massachusetts.  The funds available for grants are dependent upon on the number of plates sold, and the proceeds obtained from those sales. 
ELIGIBILITY

Applicants must be one of the following:

· A Massachusetts non-profit 501(c)3 humane organization working within the community

to assist companion animals.
· A Massachusetts city or town with an animal care and control function.  Note:  if you are an animal control officer who works for more than one city or town, you must submit a proposal for each city or town.
DEADLINE

Proposals must be postmarked no later than May 1, 2009.   The original AND four (4) copies (this makes 5 total) must be included. Due to the limited size of the MAC post office box, proposals should be mailed to:

Kara Holmquist

Mass. Animal Coalition

c/o MSPCA
350 South Huntington Avenue

Boston, MA  02130

We will send an acknowledgement e-mail within two weeks of receiving an application.  For questions during the application process, please e-mail Kara Holmquist at Kara.Holmquist@gmail.com or 617-541-5008.  PLEASE NOTE:  Failure to meet the deadline or mail the original and four copies will result in disqualification.
CONTRACT TERMS AND CONDITIONS

The maximum term of an award is one year.  If awarded a grant from the Massachusetts Animal Coalition, the grantee will be expected to sign an agreement/letter of understanding abiding by certain terms and conditions, including:

· Submission of preliminary and final reports, as requested.  We reserve the right to request documentation such as receipts.  We will send you the form to be filled out for both of the above reports.
· Grantees are required to advertise the “I’m Animal Friendly” license plates in their facility, newsletter and in any other practicable manner.
· In all printed matter, press releases, and other local announcements regarding this project,

Grantees shall acknowledge the funding support provided by the Massachusetts Animal Coalition’s Animal Friendly License Plate Program.  Grantees will be expected to work with MAC to promote the plate through the news media.

· Monies not used for the purpose intended shall be returned to the Massachusetts Animal Coalition’s Animal Friendly License Plate Fund.
PROPOSAL EVALUATION PROCESS

The Massachusetts Animal Coalition’s License Plate Task Force will screen and evaluate

proposals. We will notify applicants by June 15, 2009. Grant periods will start July 1, 2009.  Any proposal lacking the required information or documentation may be disqualified. The criteria that will be used to evaluate proposals include:

We encourage collaboration and proposals that involve multiple organizations (as long as all qualify (are 501(c) (3) or municipality)).  We receive many proposals each year and at times there are large numbers of proposals from the same geographic areas that appear to overlap service area and services.  While all proposals might be good, the "I'm Animal Friendly" license plate program is a state-wide program and has an obligation to distribute funds across the state.  The task force has discussed that in some instances a collaboration of entities might make a stronger proposal.  If you have questions about this, either about specific geographic areas or the details of how to apply as multiple organizations within this application, please contact Kara via the contact information above.
Goal/Scope: The proposal should state the specific problem the grant funds will be used to address.  The proposal should contain specific goals and demonstrate how those goals will be met and how the target population (both human and animal) will be impacted.  Proposals that focus on feral cats should specify how attempts will be made to impact the entire colony/population/community.

Need: The proposal conveys a good understanding of a particular need in the targeted area and adequately describes how the proposed project addresses it.

Project design: The project should define and quantify the pet overpopulation problem in your community, be well-thought out and present a clear method/strategy to reduce pet overpopulation.  Successful proposals will document the particular overpopulation sources in the community targeted, and clearly define a plan to address those issues in the most cost-effective and practical manner.   Proposals should pay special attention to preventing the often overlooked contributions to pet overpopulation and make use of methods to prevent these through pediatric spaying and neutering, spaying pregnant animals and spaying and neutering all animals prior to adoption.  Programs that use vouchers/certificates should explain how they determine who received funding and how a co-pay is determined, follow-up, etc.
Collaboration: The proposal should consider any possible collaboration (with animal shelters, other rescue organizations, veterinarians, educational outreach providers) that can effectively help reach the proposal’s goals, provide additional services, or lower the cost of surgery per animal. 
Assessment:  Proposal should explain what measurable criteria will be used to determine if your organization reaches its objectives.  How will you measure the success of your proposed program?
Continuation/leverage: The proposal should address how the applicant will attempt to continue its project after the grant term.
ENCLOSURES.  Please include the following:

For non-profit organizations:

1.
Copy of your 501(c)(3) determination letter. You need only include one copy.
2.
Documentation of registration with the State of Mass. (i.e. ST2) as a nonprofit

organization. (you need only include one copy)
3.
List of your Board of Directors or other organizational leadership.
4.
Annual Report, brochure or other promotional material relevant to evaluation of your

proposal.
5.
Financial statements for the last fiscal year (form 990 or 990EZ). You need only include one copy.  Please include 2008, if available, or 2007, if not.
6.
Written statement required for omitted documents listed above.
7.
2009 budget for animal care services, including spay/neutering, sheltering, etc. 
For cities/towns:

1. 
Annual animal control services/program budget for 2009; percentage of budget, or amount directed toward spay/neuter efforts.

2. 
Annual Report, brochure or other promotional material relevant to evaluation of your

proposal.
2009 GRANT REQUEST SUMMARY

Handwritten proposals will not be accepted
please do not put “see attached” anywhere except narrative portion on page
ORGANIZATION NAME/CITY OR TOWN: ____________________________________

ADDRESS:
 _________________________________________________________
Street




_________________________________________________________

 City 





Zip

CONTACT PERSON: __________________________ TITLE: _______________________

TELEPHONE: ________________________________ FAX: _______________________

EMAIL: _____________________________________ WEBSITE: ____________________

BRIEFLY DESCRIBE THE PROJECT YOU ARE REQUESTING FUNDS FOR:

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

Type of program (please check all that apply to your application)

□  Feral cat clinic

□ Low-income program

□ Shelter program (prior to adoption)

Type of animals targeted in this proposal (please check all that apply to your application):

□ Homeless/shelter cats  


□ Homeless/shelter dogs

□ Owned/low-income cats




□ Owned/low-income dogs



□ Feral cats 



AMOUNT REQUESTED: ____________________________

TOTAL PROJECT COST: ____________________________

INFORMATION ABOUT APPLICANT

1. 
Is the applicant a: 

□ non-profit organization 

□ city or town

2. 
What is the region served.  Please list your county(ies) and the specific cities/town served within that county(ies):
3.
 For organizations, what is your annual budget (for cities/towns, please use annual budget for animal control and care services only) not including salaries.

4. 
If your organization is a non-profit, please provide your mission statement: 

(or attach a copy).
5. 
If you are a city or town, please describe the structure of your governmental unit and how

animal care and control functions are organized in your community. Please also list any

cities or towns or animal shelters or agencies you work with.
6. 
What is the estimated number of homeless/stray animals in your community?

Cats ________ Dogs _________

7. 
a. 
Are you currently offering spay/neuter services? _____________

(if “no”, skip to 9 below)

b. 
If yes, for how long have they been offered? _____________

c. 
If yes, for whom? (please check all that apply):

Homeless/shelter cats _______ 
Homeless/shelter dogs ________

“Owned” cats

_______ 
“Owned” dogs

 ________

Feral cats 

_______

Other (please describe) _____________________________________

________________________________________________________

d. 
Please list the total number of animals spayed/neutered in 2008: 
______________

e. 
Total expenses for spay/neuter in 2008: __________  
f. 
Where are your services provided? ________________________________

____________________________________________________________

g. 
Cost per animal:
Cat spay $________
Cat neuter $________

Dog spay $________
Dog neuter $________

8. 
a. 
Do you provide pediatric spay/neuter (8 weeks) ________

b. 
If no, why not? ________________________________________
_____________________________________________________

c.
 If yes, at what age/weight: _____________________________

□  Please check here if you are interested in learning or having your veterinarian learn about early spay/neuter.  

d.
 Do you spay pregnant animals? _________

e.
 If no, why not? _________________________________________

______________________________________________________

f. 
If yes, are there any restrictions? ___________________________

______________________________________________________

9. 
a. 
Do you operate a shelter or rescue program? ____________

b. 
If yes, please describe services (use additional sheet of paper if necessary):

______________________________________________________

______________________________________________________

______________________________________________________

______________________________________________________

For 2008, please report:

Number of animals taken in 



Cats ______ Dogs ______ Other ______

Number of animals adopted or returned to owner
Cats ______ Dogs ______ Other ______

Number of animals sent to other organizations
Cats ______ Dogs ______ Other ______

Number of animals euthanized


Cats ______ Dogs ______ Other ______

Number of animals adopted unaltered 

Cats_____   Dogs______   Other_______  

Number of animals spayed/neutered
  

Cats_____   Dogs______   Other_______   

f. 
Do you adopt out any animals unspayed or unneutered? _______

g. 
If yes, please describe your spay/neuter compliance program:

______________________________________________________

______________________________________________________

______________________________________________________

______________________________________________________

10.
Do you have a feral cat program?  Do you practice trap/neuter/return?  Do you ever take in feral cats for adoption?  Please describe your program(s) for feral cats:

11. 
If you have a spay/neuter program, how are funds currently raised?
12.
Do you currently work with any other rescue organizations?  Please describe:
13. 
What percentage of your annual budget (for cities/towns, of your animal care and

control budget) is spent on spay/neuter services? ________________  
14.
What are your top 3 budget items? Include both amounts and percentages:
1. ___________________________________________
2. ___________________________________________

3.  ___________________________________________

15.
If you are not offering spay/neuter services currently, why not?

16.
If you receive only a percentage of your grant request, how will this impact your project goals?  Will other funds be available to supplement the MAC grant?

PROPOSAL NARRATIVE

 (You may use a separate sheet of paper, if necessary, but please do not exceed 3 typed, double spaced pages – no smaller than 12pt. font.)

PLEASE CLEARLY ADDRESS EACH OF THE CRITERIA LISTED ON PAGE 3, USING THE FOLLOWING HEADLINES:  Goal/Scope, Need, Project design, Collaboration, Assessment, and Continuation/leverage. 
if you are operating a voucher program, please explain how it works, how determinations are made, how a co-pay operates, how follow-up works, etc.
BUDGET INFORMATION

(you may attach a separate piece of paper to explain any expenses in greater detail)

	CATEGORY
	AMOUNT REQUESTED*
	TOTAL PROJECT COST

	Spay/Neuter surgeries:
	
	

	Cat spay (____ animals @ $____)


	
	

	Dog spay (____ animals @ $____)


	
	

	Cat neuter (____ animals @ $____)


	
	

	Dog neuter (____ animals @ $____)


	
	

	Transportation.  Describe here:

	////////////////////////////////////////

////////////////////////////////////////

////////////////////////////////////////

////////////////////////////////////////
////////////////////////////////////////
	

	Supplies.  Describe here:

	////////////////////////////////////////

////////////////////////////////////////

////////////////////////////////////////

////////////////////////////////////////
////////////////////////////////////////
	

	Personnel.  Describe here:

	////////////////////////////////////////

////////////////////////////////////////

////////////////////////////////////////

////////////////////////////////////////
////////////////////////////////////////
	

	Educational material.  Describe here: 

	////////////////////////////////////////

////////////////////////////////////////

////////////////////////////////////////

////////////////////////////////////////
////////////////////////////////////////
	

	Other.  Describe here:


	////////////////////////////////////////

////////////////////////////////////////

////////////////////////////////////////

////////////////////////////////////////
////////////////////////////////////////
	

	Other.  Describe here:


	////////////////////////////////////////

////////////////////////////////////////

////////////////////////////////////////

////////////////////////////////////////
	

	Other.  Describe here:


	////////////////////////////////////////

////////////////////////////////////////

////////////////////////////////////////

////////////////////////////////////////
	

	TOTALS
	////////////////////////////////////////
	


*Shaded areas indicate that these are not expenses that qualify to be paid for from the Animal Friendly License Plate Program.  
BONUS POINTS FORM

These bonus points will be used when an application is rated very closely or tied with another organization. They will not make up for an incomplete application, nor be weighted as much as the important substantive information about an applicant's program. However, because the success of the program and the amount of money available depends directly on the number of plates sold, organizational participation in efforts to market the plates is crucial.  Please attach any material demonstrating your outreach.
1.  Please list any events where your organization displayed license plate material/flyers or where members of your organization participated in an event organized by MAC:

_________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________

2.  Please list any advertisements or information in your newsletter(s) (and how many times it/they appeared): 
_________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________

_________________________________________________________

3.  Please list the number of months the license plate information was displayed on your organization's website and the URL:   


______________________________________________ 

4. Please mention any other initiatives your organization conducted to increase the visibility and sale of license plates:

Please feel free to attach any relevant information or use additional sheets
Sample wording, images and ideas for advertising the plate can be found at www.petplate.org
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